
 

Page | 1 
 

Towamencin Planning Commission 

Minutes 

January 12, 2026 

7:00 PM 

 

 

Present: 

Brett MacKay, Chairman 

Michael Main 

Rich Marino 

Dennis McGeehan 

Patricia Younce 

Joseph Vavra 

 

Absent: 

Edward Buonocore, Term expired 

Craig Brown, Term expired 

Nancy Becker, Term expired 

 

Staff:     

Mary Stover, Township Engineer CKS  

 

Supervisors Osei, Warner, Morgan and Gaynor were also present. 

 

Re-organization: 

Ms. Younce nominated Mr. MacKay as Chairman, Mr. Vavra seconded and the vote in favor was 

unanimous. 

 

Mr. Vavra nominated Ms. Younce as Vice Chair, Mr. Main seconded and the vote in favor was 

unanimous. 

 

Mr. Leach will continue as Secretary 

 

Approval of December 1, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting Minutes:  

A motion was made to approve the December 1, 2025, minutes by Mr. Vavra, seconded by Ms. 

Younce.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 

New Business: 

 

A. Project Hilltop Preliminary Plan – Pinnacle Realty Development Company (SLD 

847) 

 
Anthony Maras, Pinnacle Realty, Gregg Adelman, Esq., Kaplin Stewart, Susan Rice, P.E., STA 

Engineering, Inc. and Matthew Hammond, P.E.TPD, Inc were present to discuss the plan. 

 



 

Page | 2 
 

Mr. Maras presented a brief overview of the proposed plan for “Hilltop” which features less 

density than the original plan (140 single family homes vs 321 small lot singles and town 

homes). This plan complies with R-175 district by right. Mr. Maras went on to explain that 

because of this reconfiguration, he no longer had control of the Seipt Farmhouse property which 

would not allow for a four-way intersection at Troxel Road. Mr. Maras asked the PC for 

feedback on key road connections with discussion centering on the existing Kriebel Road 

intersection with Sumneytown Pike and whether Canterbury Drive, which would be connected 

from the Hunter Villa Community, should connect with Sumneytown Pike or terminate in a cul-

de-sac. Future connection to the Walton Farm Property (W.B.Homes) would be limited pending 

build-out of both communities. 

 

Ms. Stover noted that the cul-de-sac, as designed, would not comply due to its length. 

 

Mr. MacKay asked about the possibility of making the intersection of Kriebel and Sumneytown 

limited to emergency use only rather than full in/out. He stated that he would be more in favor of 

having Canterbury intersect with Kriebel. The PC was more inclined toward four-way 

intersections which reduces the number of “conflict” points. 

 

Mr. Marino asked about four-way stop signs as a “traffic calming” method. Mr. Hammond 

replied that, in his opinion, there were better methods of “traffic calming.” Mr. Marino went on 

to note that he felt a signal was required at Kriebel and Sumneytown.  Mr. Hammond replied that 

the distance between a signal at Kriebel and the existing signal at Troxel would be less than 

ideal. 

 

Mr. Main asked about the possibility of making the upper portion of Kriebel Road one way, 

noting that most of the traffic turns right onto Kriebel from Sumneytown to avoid traffic lights. 

Mr. Main suggested that the one-way portion be limited to a right turn onto Sumneytown Pike 

only. 

 

Mr. Maras agreed to further analysis of traffic flow with input from the County and PennDOT. 

He went on to add that making the Troxel Road intersection four-way would necessitate him 

going back to the Seipts which would increase density. Ms. Younce and Mr. MacKay both stated 

that they were opposed to increased density. The rest of the PC members were in unanimous 

support for maintaining less density. 

 

Mr. Maras then explained that the open space featured more natural features (walking trails) 

rather than recreation space. 

 

Mr. MacKay asked about connecting the south side of the property with the north side. Mr. 

Maras answered that there would be a stream crossing involved. Mr. MacKay suggested that 

Freddy Hill may have already constructed a stream crossing there. 

 

Mr. MacKay asked for comments from the public. 

 

Joe Meehan, resident – the Open Space Committee has the following four concerns: 



 

Page | 3 
 

1. This project meets and exceeds the required 35% open space, however this is total 

open space not all of which is usable or recreational in nature. 

2. The development does not align with the intent of Article 5, section 136-502 

requiring open space suitable for active and passive recreation, such as parks, 

woodlands, playgrounds, and conservation areas. 

3. There is no designation on the plans for required minimum playground and park 

acreage as specified by unit count (1.5 – 2.5 acres for 1-49 units, 3.5-5 acres for 100-

200 units). 

4. The fee in lieu of providing recreation infrastructure is seen as negotiable, not 

mandatory and is currently insufficient at $1,000/unit. 

Mr. Meehan went on to explain that the Committee had prepared a detailed analysis which he 

would share with the PC. 

 

Mr. Main asked who would maintain the stormwater basins if the Township takes over the open 

space and Mr. Maras responded that there would be an HOA. 

 

Mr. MacKay asked the status of the existing cell tower (silo) and Mr. Maras explained that it was 

on an “out-parcel.” 

  

Casey Hennings, resident, reiterated his previous concerns regarding the loss of natural space 

and related environmental issues. 

 

Don German, resident, asked about how utilities would be handled and Mr. Maras answered that 

they would all be underground. 

 

Joe Silverman, resident, asked how far the cell tower was from the proposed residences and 

expressed concern regarding radiation from the tower. 

 

Township Resident, expressed concern regarding sight distances along Kriebel Road. Mr. 

Hammond responded that the plan must meet or exceed required sight distances and the plan 

would be approved by County and Township traffic engineers. 

 

Tiffany Stanton, resident, expressed her concern regarding the increased traffic on Sumneytown 

Pike. 

 

Nancy Becker, resident, asked about safety issues regarding first responder access. She also 

expressed her support for usable open space. 

 

Township resident, asked about the proposed start time for the project and Mr. Maras replied 18 

– 24 months. 

 

Township resident asked about the completion of the traffic plan and stressed that it should be 

completed while school was in session. 

 

Joe Silverman, resident, asked who owned the ground the cell tower was located on and who was 

receiving revenue. 



 

Page | 4 
 

 

Rich Costello(?) resident, asked how the proposed project fits into the Connectivity Study. 

 

There being no additional comments, Mr. MacKay asked for a motion to adjourn. Mr. Vavra 

made the motion and Ms. Younce seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 8:30. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Douglas E Leach 
 

Douglas E. Leach 

Assistant Zoning and Code Enforcement Officer 


